Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
FY26 21st Century Community Learning Centers.
1. The RFA states that funds cannot be used to pay for a school choir/band. Is this for elementary, middle, and high school? 
Yes. 
2. Does this mean we cannot establish a new choir/band during 21st-century programming? 
Yes. 
3. Where do I find my KY School ID?
A school’s ID can be found on the school’s overview/landing page on the School Report Card. Select the school from the drop list, the school overview page will load, and the school number is displayed under the map on this page. The school code displayed is the 6-digit code. The first three digits are the district code, and the last three digits are the school code.
4. On page one, it states that this is a three-year sub-grant. On page 31 of Form B, number 24 states that the fiscal agent must submit the CPR in the third year of programming to receive funding in the fourth and fifth years. 
Form B, number 24 has been updated to reflect the new information outlined in the RFA. 
5. Do we use federal or state rates for fringe benefits? 
Please use established state rates for the fiscal agent. 
6. Is there no longer a separate funding category for “Continuation grants”? Does this mean that programs that are reapplying for funding can now request $150,000 per year (instead of the $100,000 previously)?
Yes. 
7. Do elementary school programs no longer have to provide a K-3 reading intervention program? 
Yes. 
8. There isn't a mention of it in the “21st CCLC Performance Goals & Indicators” section (page 9) or in the body of the RFP, but it is mentioned in the Logic Model. 
The Logic Model has been amended to reflect that K-3 reading interventions are not required; however, literacy must still be addressed at all grade levels served by the grant. 
9. For the new Performance Indicators (PIs): Just confirming, do applicants no longer propose their own indicators? 
Yes. 
10. Will applicants be required to evaluate the goals and PIs, or will this be done through CEEP? 
Page 17 of the RFA states that programs are required to conduct annual, ongoing assessments of performance goals and indicators each grant year. 
11. Looks like some of the PIs (e.g., attendance) are indicators that CEEP has evaluated for the Center Profiles. For the academic PIs (under Goal 1), what interim assessments are used – state assessments, or can applicants/schools propose their own assessments (e.g., STAR)? (This probably isn’t relevant if KDE/CEEP are evaluating the PIs. 
Applicants should use the assessments currently being implemented locally by the district.  
12. Are programs now only required to have a minimum of 8 hours of certified instructional time per week of programming during the school year and summer?  
Yes.
13. If a fiscal agent is a CBO/FBO, should the PDFs be saved as DISTRICT SCHOOL or as the name of the applicant/fiscal agent? 
The RFA states that applicants must scan or save the completed “Original” application in its entirety, including all signatures, to PDF format. Save the original application as 26CCLC District School. For example, Southside Elementary School in Woodford County would save the original application as 26CCLC Woodford Southside Elementary School. This naming protocol applies regardless of who the fiscal agent is. 
14. The RFA states that “An 'Original Copy' is required when applying electronically” (page 20). I just wanted to confirm that an Original Copy is not required and that this is a mistake in the RFA.
An original copy is required as part of the application submission. To be a complete application, both an original and a redacted copy must be submitted. The directions for submission are detailed on pages 20-21 of the RFA. 
15. In the table in the “FY26 Cycle 23 RFA Scoring Rubric” section (page 22), is the Reference Page listed after the Assurances meant to be the Table of Contents?
A table of contents is not required; however, the reference page is required.  This is not an error in the RFA.
16. Does the homework/academic portion of the program have to be in the first hour of programming? Can enrichment activities be in the first hour of programming? 
It is recommended to complete homework help/tutoring within the first hour of programming.
17. Can we include a table of contents? 
Grantees may include a Table of Contents; however, it will not be read or considered when scoring. 
18. Is there a particular way we should format our reference page?
Formatting instructions for the reference page are outlined in the general formatting instructions on page 21 of the RFA. 
19. Can the site coordinator also be the program director? 
Yes. 
20. Can the program director be the school principal? 
While the program director may be the school principal, it is generally best practice for the principal to maintain their regular responsibilities and designate another individual as the program director to support effective program implementation. 
21. When you say each "section" underlined and bold, does that mean the Parts?  Or each point on the rubric under each part?  (1.1.1, 1.1.2, etc.?)
How the applicant chooses to clarify which part of the rubric they are addressing is a matter of choice. Please refer to the FY25 Sample and also to the recorded technical assistance (TA) session for clarification.
22. In the Logic Model, are the "Performance Measures (Outcomes)" where applicants propose their own outcomes? In the past, these were the restatements of the Performance Indicators, so I'm wondering how to address this, since the indicators were set by KDE. Outcome must align with each performance indicator. 
23. Can two schools in the same district use the same co-applicant? 
Yes; however, the applicant must ensure that the co-applicant can meet the different needs of each school. 
24. If we have had a break in funding (approximately 4 years), we must still keep the same co-applicant? 
Not necessarily. Each request is reviewed on a case-by-case basis. Please email the KDERFP@education.ky.gov inbox with specific details about why you can no longer keep the previous co-applicant.
25. Our District had a co-applicant who is no longer able, per their policy, to be a co-applicant. Are we good to seek another co-applicant? 
Each request is reviewed on a case-by-case basis. Please email the KDERFP@education.ky.gov inbox with specific details about why you can no longer keep the previous co-applicant. 
26. Does the 50-student participation mean that 50 students are initially enrolled or that 50 students need to be in attendance each day? 
Fifty students must be served 90 hours or more by the end of each school year, and not just enrolled.
27. To receive competitive priority points for transportation, does 21C funding have to be used, or can another funding source be utilized? 
While 21st CCLC funds can be used to pay for transportation, another funding source may also be utilized. 
28. For MS 21st Century, is summer programming all summer, or like in the past, four days for two weeks? 
The RFA states that elementary programs must provide four consecutive weeks of summer programming, while middle and high school programs must provide two consecutive weeks of programming. For additional information on summer programming, please refer to pages 11-12 of the RFA. 
29. If an organization is pre-approved as a vendor, can it also be considered a community partner? 
Yes. 
30. Would this funding be available for enrichment classes if the district's Community Education Director were to partner? 
If the fiscal agent wishes to partner with the Community Education program to bring a community partner into the program to provide enrichment classes, then yes.  
31. If we are reapplying, does our Co-applicant have to be the same as on the original grant? Each request is reviewed on a case-by-case basis. Please email the KDERFP@education.ky.gov inbox with specific details about why you can no longer keep the previous co-applicant. 
32. Is there any guarantee that funding will be available for the next school year (26-27)? The Afterschool Alliance has shared that we don't know if 21st CCLC funds will be available in the federal budget moving forward. 
The Kentucky Department of Education has 21st CCLC funding for the 2026-2027 school year. 
33. Can a school have an outside daycare that comes into their building after school and charges for their services, and a 21st Century afterschool program as well? 
Yes; however, programming and funding must be maintained separately. 
34. Under the supplanting section, it says that funds cannot be used to pay for school-related clubs, etc.  Would it also be considered supplanting if we partnered with a community organization that is already offering some after-school/summer programming and used this grant to cover some of their existing costs? 
21st CCLC funds may not be used to pay for existing programming or services of any kind. 
35. I wrote 21st Century grants last year and was awarded funding in one district, but now I work for a different district. Our two district applications will likely look very similar this year. If we list one another as collaborators, will that prevent anyone from assuming we plagiarized? 
Yes, if all collaborators are identified, the application will not be deemed non-responsive. We assume that if the same people or entities were involved in the writing, the applications will be similar. This also pertains to applications from the same district.  
36. Does a program have to have a program director? 
No. 
37. Or is a site director sufficient? 
Yes, a site coordinator is sufficient.
38. I noticed in the logic model provided (attached) that the Performance Indicators under Goal 1 refer to an interim assessment. Is this interim assessment designed and conducted by KDE? 
No. 
39. Can applicants/schools propose their own assessments? 
Applicants should use the assessments currently being implemented by the district.  
40. Our Community-Based Organization has the full capability and intent to implement our own assessment of math and reading scores to evaluate the impact of our programming using Renaissance Learning Star Assessments, but we are seeking clarification on whether or not this Performance Indicator for Goal 1 will use your assessment tool or ours. 
Applicants should use the assessments currently being implemented by the district.  
41. We also want to confirm that we are not expected to propose our own Performance Indicators as was done in years past. 
Yes, that is accurate. 
42. We want to ensure that our interpretation of the grant goals and performance measures aligns with the grant’s expectations and that we are reporting progress accurately. Could you please clarify how percentage increases in the performance indicators should be interpreted—specifically, whether they reflect relative annual increases or cumulative changes over the full grant period? 
The RFA states that programs are required to conduct annual, ongoing assessments of performance goals and indicators each grant year. For more information, please refer to page 17 in the RFA. 
For example, in the indicator: 
“Increase science, math, and reading scores of regular attendees (90+ hours or more) by 3% annually as measured by interim assessments,”
Should we interpret this as: 
The example in #1 below is correct.
1. A 3% increase each year compared to the baseline or previous year’s results (relative annual change), or 
1. A total 3% cumulative increase over the three-year grant period (absolute change)?
Similarly, for Goal 4, Performance Indicator 1:
“Increase parent participation in family engagement sessions, that are aligned with survey results, by 25% annually as measured by Transact Data Reports,”
Should the 25% increase be understood as: 
The example in #1 below is correct. 
1. A 25% increase each year relative to the prior year’s participation rate, or 
1. A total 25% increase by the end of the three-year grant period?
For reference, here’s how we are distinguishing between relative and absolute changes:
	Phrase
	Type of Change
	Example (from 60%)
	New Value

	Increase by 3%
	Relative change
	60% × 1.03
	61.8%

	Increase by 3 percentage points
	Absolute change

	60% + 3
	63%


43. Can changes made to the RFA be noted in a different color text or could all changes also be noted on an appendix page to the RFA? 
All edits to the RFA are noted on the cover page of the RFA and also highlighted in dark red font, as is KDE policy.  There is no appendix page in the RFA. 
44. The RFA states to “Email the ‘Original’ and the ‘Blind Copy’ in one email” but also states that “An ‘original copy’ is required when submitting the application electronically.” To confirm, the “original” and “original copy” are the same, correct?
Yes, one original, unredacted application must be attached, and one redacted copy of the original application. 
